ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

#### JEFFERSON COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT

MADRAS, OREGON

#### **DISTRICT OFFICIALS**

JUNE 30, 2022

#### Chair

Susan Stovall Madras, Oregon

#### Vice Chair

Tiffany Turo Madras, Oregon

#### **Board Members**

Guy Chittenden Madras, Oregon

Stephen Hillis Madras, Oregon

Karen Esvelt Madras, Oregon

#### **Executive Director**

Jane Ellen Innes 241 SE Seventh St. Madras, Oregon 97741

#### Registered Agent

Jered Reid Law Office of Jered Reid, LLC 35 SE C Street Madras, Oregon 97741

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

	Page
DISTRICT OFFICIALS	
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT	1
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS	5
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Government-Wide Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position – Modified Cash Basis	11
Statement of Activities – Modified Cash Basis	12
Fund Financial Statements	
Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds – Modified Cash Basis	13
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances –	
Governmental Funds – Modified Cash Basis	14
Notes to Financial Statements	15
OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
General Fund – Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance	
Modified Cash Basis – Budget and Actual	35
Building and Improvement Fund – Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes	
In Fund Balance Modified Cash Basis – Budget and Actual	37
Schedule of Expenditures and Appropriations	38
Schedule of Property Tax Transactions	39
OTHER INFORMATION	
Schedule of Top Property Taxpayers	40
ALIDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY STATE REGULATIONS	<i>1</i> 1



Kara L. Pardue, Partner Adam M. Barnett, Partner Heather A. McMeekin, Partner Wesley B. Price, III, Partner Emeritus

#### **INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT**

Board of Directors Jefferson County Library District Madras, Oregon

#### **Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements**

#### **Opinions**

We have audited the modified cash basis financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Jefferson County Library District (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective modified cash basis financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of the Jefferson County Library District, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position-modified cash basis and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1.

#### **Basis for Opinions**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

#### **Emphasis of Matter — Basis of Accounting**

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Board of Directors
Jefferson County Library District
Page 2

#### Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1, and for determining that the modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial statements in the circumstances. Management is also responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

#### Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
  procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
  opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
  expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.



Board of Directors
Jefferson County Library District
Page 3

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control—related matters that we identified during the audit.

#### **Other Supplementary Information**

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Jefferson County Library District's financial statements. The other supplementary information listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The other supplementary information as listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole on the basis of accounting described in Note 1.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis, as listed in the table of contents, has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

#### Prior-year Comparative Information

We have previously audited the District's 2021 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund in our report dated December 21, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, is consistent in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.



Board of Directors Jefferson County Library District Page 4

#### Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the *Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Standards*, we have also issued a report titled "Independent Auditors' Report Required by Oregon State Regulations" dated December 12, 2022, which is also not a required part of the financial statements. The purpose of that report is to address specific matters required by the State of Oregon.

PRICE FRONK & CO.

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

By:

Heather A. McMeekin – a partner

December 12, 2022





#### **MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS**

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

As management of the Jefferson County Library District, we offer readers of the District's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information found within the body of the audited financial statements.

#### **Financial Highlights**

The assets of the District exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2022, by \$2,878,354. Of this amount \$1,638,097 is unassigned.

Total net position of the District decreased by \$105,438 during the year ended June 30, 2022, compared to an increase of \$406,710 in the prior-year.

As of June 30, 2022, the District's General Fund reported an ending fund balance of \$902,506, a decrease of \$289,587.

#### Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic financial statements. These basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2) fund financial statements and 3) notes to financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

#### **Basis of Accounting**

The District has elected to present its financial statements on the modified cash basis of accounting. This is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Basis of accounting is a reference to when financial events are recorded, such as the timing for recognizing revenues, expenses and related assets and liabilities. Under the District's modified cash basis of accounting, revenues and expenses and related assets and liabilities are recorded when they result from cash transactions, except for recording of capital assets, related depreciation and long-term debt, in the government-wide financial statements for all activities.

As a result of the use of the modified cash basis of accounting, certain assets and their related revenues (such as accounts receivable and revenue for billed or provided services not yet collected) and certain liabilities and their related expenses (such as accounts payable and expenses for goods or services received but not yet paid and accrued expenses and payroll liabilities) are not recorded in these financial statements. Therefore, when reviewing the financial information and discussion within this annual report, the reader should keep in mind the limitations resulting from the use of the modified cash basis of accounting.

#### **MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS**

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

#### **Government-wide Financial Statements**

The *government-wide financial statements* are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The *Statement of Net Position* presents information on all the District's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as *net position*. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating. The *Statement of Activities* presents information showing how the District's net position changed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Each of these government-wide financial statements, the *Statement of Net Position* and the *Statement of Activities*, distinguish functions of the District that are supported primarily by intergovernmental revenues (*governmental activities*) from other functions that are intended to recover all, or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (*business-type activities*). The District had no business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2022. The governmental activities of the District include library support services and operation and maintenance of facilities in conjunction with youth and community programs. Capital assets and related debt are supported primarily by property taxes.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 11 and 12 of this report. A comparison to the prior year of the summarized modified cash basis Statement of Net Position is as follows:

#### **Summarized Statement of Net Position**

	June 30, 2022		June 30, 2021		Change
Assets					
Current assets	\$	1,793,379	\$	2,046,370	\$ (252,991)
Non-current assets	-	1,097,291		942,079	 155,212
TOTAL ASSETS	<u></u>	2,890,670		2,988,449	 (97,779)
Liabilities and Deferred Inflows		100,316		4,657	 95,659
Net Position					
Net investment in capital assets		1,018,023		942,079	75,944
Restricted for grant programs		134,234		133,268	966
Unassigned		1,638,097		1,908,445	(270,348)
TOTAL NET POSITION		2,790,354		2,983,792	 (193,438)
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION	\$	2,890,670	\$	2,988,449	\$ (193,438)

#### **MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS**

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

A summarized comparison to the prior year of the modified cash basis Statement of Activities is as follows:

#### Summarized Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position

	June 30, 2022		June 30, 2021			Change
Revenues Received						
Property taxes	\$	728,867	\$	712,589	\$	16,278
Operating grants and contributions		22,681		485,206		(462,525)
Capital grants and contributions		97,760		77,172		20,588
Interest		12,740		22,848		(10,108)
Charges for services and miscellaneous		24,711		55,616		(30,905)
Contract Income		9,768			-	9,768
Total revenues		896,527		1,353,431		(456,904)
Total expenses paid		1,001,965		946,721		55,244
Changes in net position		(105,438)		406,710	****	(512,148)
Net position - Beginning of year		2,983,792		2,577,082		406,710
Net position - End of year	\$	2,878,354	\$	2,983,792	\$	(105,438)

#### **Fund Financial Statements**

A *fund* is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Jefferson County Library District, like other local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

<u>Governmental funds</u>. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for *governmental funds* with similar information presented for *governmental activities* in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. A reconciliation from the

#### **MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS**

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. A reconciliation from the General Fund Balance Sheet to the government-wide Statement of Net Position and a reconciliation from the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the government-wide Statement of Activities have been included in this report.

The District reported activity in two governmental funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the General Fund and the Building and Improvement Fund. Information is presented in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet – Modified Cash Basis and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Modified Cash Basis for these funds.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 13 and 14 of this report.

#### Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin on page 15 of this report.

#### Other Information

The District has included other supplementary information beginning on page 35 including budgetary comparisons for each fund and schedules required under Standards for the Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.

#### **Government-wide Financial Analysis**

Net position at a specific point in time serves as a useful indicator of an entity's financial position. In the case of the District, assets exceeded liabilities by \$2,878,354 at June 30, 2022.

Of the District's net position, 36.5% reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land and improvements, buildings and improvements, furniture and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to its patrons; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

The District sold a building on contract in the current year. The library holds the deed to the land until the final payment is made. The deferred inflow plus contract liability will total \$88,000 each year. After the final payment is made, the library will exchange the \$88,000 asset and resolve the \$88,000 deferred inflow.

The District had \$134,234 of unspent grant proceeds at year end that were considered restricted net position. The remaining 58.7% of the District's net position, \$1,638,097 may be used to meet the District's on-going obligations to patrons, citizens and creditors.

#### **MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS**

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

As of June 30, 2022, the District reports positive balances in all its categories of net position (net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted) for the government as a whole and for the governmental activities.

#### **Governmental Activities**

The District's governmental activities decreased the District's net position by \$105,438 during the year ended June 30, 2022, compared to an increase of \$406,710 in the prior year. The most significant changes from the prior year were decreases in grants and public support.

#### Financial Analysis of the District's Funds

The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District's financing requirements. Particularly, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending as of the end of the fiscal year.

As of June 30, 2022, \$902,506 is the reported General Fund balance for the District, an decrease of \$289,587. The Building and Improvement Fund reported a fund balance of \$878,558 as of June 30, 2022, an increase of \$28,938 due primarily from rental revenues and limited expenditures in anticipation of the new library building in the future.

#### **General Fund Budgetary Highlights**

Revenues were \$197,754 under budget, due to the funds received from public contributions, bequests and grant funding. Expenditures were \$355,657 under budget, due primarily to grant expenses being under appropriated by \$145,342, capital outlay being under appropriated by \$119,504 and unused appropriated payroll funds of \$40,429.

#### **Capital Asset and Debt Administration**

#### **Capital Assets**

The District's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2022, is \$1,106,023, net of accumulated depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes the District's land, buildings, furniture and equipment. The District's new capital assets included information technology equipment, land, building and building improvements. The cost of newly acquired capital assets was \$332,823 during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. The District's depreciation expense on capital assets was \$57,080 for the year. The District

### MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

disposed of \$269,047 of capital assets during the year. Additional information on the District's capital assets is included in Note 4 on page 22 of this report.

#### Key Economic Factors and Budget Information for the Future

- A long-term goal of the library is to increase the size of the facility. Funding will be raised through donations, rent from acquired properties, grants and low interest rate loans.
- Employer contribution rates for the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System are 23.48% for Tier1/Tier2 employees and 21.15% for OPSRP employees. This represents a decrease from the 2021 rates of 0.90% to the Tier1/Tier2 rate and an increase of 1.55% for the OPSRP rate.
- The Library sold the D St. building on contract. The library holds the deed to the land until the final payment is made. Interest on the remaining balance of \$79,267 will accrue at the rate of 4% and monthly payments of \$1,000 will be made.
- The Library will continue to pursue increased grant funding in the coming years. However, it is worth noting that the availability of grant funds was exceptionally high during the prior two fiscal years due to the governmental response to the COVID-19 public health crisis.

#### **Requests for Information**

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview to those parties interested in the District's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Library Director, Jefferson County Library District, 241 SE 7<sup>th</sup> Street, Madras, Oregon 97741.



#### STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

JUNE 30, 2022

(WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2021)

	Governmental Activities			
	2022	2021		
ASSETS				
Cash and investments	\$ 1,793,380	\$ 2,046,370		
Land	311,387	311,387		
Depreciable capital assets	951,578	1,022,253		
Assets not yet placed in service	254,715	120,265		
Accumulated depreciation	(411,657)	(511,826)		
Note receivable	79,267_			
TOTAL ASSETS	2,978,670	2,988,449		
LIABILITIES				
Credit card liabilities	12,316	4,657		
Contract liability	79,267			
TOTAL LIABILITIES	91,583	4,657		
Deferred inflows of resources	8,733			
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS	100,316	4,657		
NET POSITION				
Net investment in capital assets	1,106,023	942,079		
Restricted for grant programs	134,234	133,268		
Unassigned	1,638,097	1,908,445		
TOTAL NET POSITION	2,878,354	2,983,792		
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND NET POSITION	\$ 2,978,670	\$ 2,988,449		

#### STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 (WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021)

	Governmental Activities					
	2022	2021				
Expenses paid						
Library services	\$ 1,001,965	\$ 946,721				
Program revenues received						
Charges for services	24,711	55,616				
Operating grants and contributions	22,681	485,206				
Capital grants and contributions	97,760	77,172				
Total program revenues	145,152	617,994				
Net program expenses	(856,813)	(328,727)				
General revenues received						
Property taxes levied for general purposes	728,867	712,589				
Earnings on investments	12,740	22,848				
Contract Income	9,768					
Total general revenues	751,375	735,437				
Change in net position	(105,438)	406,710				
Net position - Beginning of year	2,983,792	2,577,082				
Net position - End of year	\$ 2,878,354	\$ 2,983,792				

#### **JEFFERSON COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT**

MADRAS, OREGON

### BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS MODIFIED CASH BASIS

JUNE 30, 2022 (WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR JUNE 30, 2021)

,				ilding and			otal		
	General			rovement		2022		2021	
ASSETS									
Cash and investments	\$	914,822	\$	878,558	\$	1,793,380	\$	2,046,370	
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	914,822	\$	878,558	\$	1,793,380	\$	2,046,370	
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES									
Liabilities									
Credit card liabilities	\$	12,316	\$		\$	12,316	\$	4,657	
TOTAL LIABILITIES		12,316				12,316		4,657	
Fund Balances									
Restricted for grant programs				134,234		134,234		133,268	
Assigned for capital acquisitions				744,324		744,324		716,352	
Assigned for film center programs		2,296				2,296		5,037	
Unassigned		900,210				900,210		1,187,056	
TOTAL FUND BALANCES		902,506		878,558	·	1,781,064		2,041,713	
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES	\$	914,822	\$	878,558	\$	1,793,380	\$	2,046,370	
Total fund balance, above					\$	1,781,064	\$	2,041,713	
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:	:								
Notes receivable are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.						79,267			
Deferred inflow of resources are not considered to be a financious obligation in the governmental funds.	ial					(8,734)			
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not spendab	le								
resources and, therefore, not reported as assets in the funds.						1,026,757		942,079	
Contract liabilities are not due and payable in the current perio	nd								
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds						(79,267)		·	
Total net position - governmental activities (page 11).					\$	2,878,354	\$	2,983,792	

# STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 (WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021)

		p. thit i			Тс	tal			
	G	eneral		lding and rovement		2022		2021	
Revenues received									
Property taxes	\$	728,867	\$		\$	728,867	\$	712,589	
Interest		8,703		4,037		12,740		22,848	
Grants		119,839				119,839		291,264	
Rental income		100		14,922		15,022		47,897	
Program services revenue		2,307				2,307		1,908	
Contributions - public support		602				602		271,114	
Fees, fines and miscellaneous		7,382				7,382		, 5,358	
Gain on sale of asset		9,768				9,767		453	
Total revenues received		877,568		18,959		896,526		1,353,431	
Expenditures paid									
Library services		904,857		25,314		930,171		972,427	
Capital outlay		51,536		175,469		227,005		62,651	
· · · · · ·									
Total expenditures paid		956,393		200,783		1,157,176	-	1,035,078	
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures		(78,825)		(181,824)		(260,650)		318,353	
Other financing sources (uses)									
Operating transfer out		(210,762)				(210,762)		(91,136)	
Operating transfer in				210,762		210,762		91,136	
		(210,762)		210,762					
Net changes in fund balances		(289,587)		28,938		(260,650)		318,353	
Fund balances - Beginning of year	1	1,192,093		849,620		2,041,713		1,723,360	
Fund balances - End of year	\$	902,506	\$	878,558	\$	1,781,063	\$	2,041,713	
~						(250.550)		240 252	
Total net change in fund balances, above					\$	(260,650)	\$	318,353	
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities and different because:	re								
The governmental funds report capital outlay as an expenditure whereas the of those assets is capitalized and depreciated for the Statement of Active						420,823		130,818	
Depreciation and gains and losses on the disposal of capital assets are not included in the funds since they are not a current use of resources.						(265,611)		(42,461)	
Change in net position - governmental activities (page 12).					\$	(105,438)	\$	406,710	

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### The District

Jefferson County Library District was formed by passage of a tax base measure in May 2000, and began operations July 1, 2000. The District provides library services to the City of Madras and surrounding areas. Property taxes are levied in Jefferson County and Wasco County.

#### Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the Statement of Net Position – Modified Cash Basis and the Statement of Activities – Modified Cash Basis) report information on all of the activities of the government. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The District has no business activities or fiduciary funds.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

#### Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities utilize the economic resources measurement focus. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination of operating income and changes in net position. All modified cash basis assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent, financial or nonfinancial) associated with their activities are reported.

The fund financial statements utilize the current financial resources measurement focus. Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable resources during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable resources at the end of the period.

The government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities and the fund financial statements utilize the modified cash basis of accounting. This basis recognizes assets, liabilities, net assets/fund balance, revenues and expenditures/expenses when they result from cash transactions.

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED

#### Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation - Continued

The District also recognizes long-term debt and capital assets on its modified cash basis Statement of Net Position, including a provision for depreciation. This basis is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### Cash and Investments

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits and amounts in investment pools that have the general characteristics of demand deposit accounts, such as the Jefferson County Treasurer's Investment Pool.

#### Capital Assets

Capital assets are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with initial, individual cost of more than \$500 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. In the governmental fund statements, capital assets are charged to expenditures as purchased.

Depreciation on exhaustible assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position and is calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The District does not capitalize its book collection.

#### **Fund Balance Reporting**

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB 54). This Statement defines the different types of fund balances that a governmental entity must use for financial reporting purposes.

GASB 54 requires the fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of the fund balance categories listed below:

- 1. <u>Nonspendable</u>, such as fund balance associated with inventories, prepaids, long-term loans and notes receivable and property held for resale (unless the proceeds are restricted, committed or assigned),
- 2. <u>Restricted</u> fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes stipulated by constitution, external resource providers or through enabling legislation,

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED

#### Fund Balance Reporting - Continued

- 3. <u>Committed</u> fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a formal action of the District's governing board (the District's highest level of decision-making authority),
- 4. <u>Assigned</u> fund balance classification is intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but does not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed and
- 5. <u>Unassigned</u> fund balance is the residual classification for the government's general fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.

The District reduces restricted amounts first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned or unassigned) amounts are available. The District reduces committed amounts first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

#### **Property Taxes**

Property taxes are assessed on a July 1 – June 30 fiscal year basis. The taxes are levied July 1 and property owners have the option of paying the full amount November 15 or February 15 less a discount, or paying in three installments, November 15, February 15 and May 15. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien July 1 and are considered delinquent if not paid by the following May 15. The Jefferson County Tax Collector is the tax collection agent for all taxing entities within Jefferson County. The Wasco County Treasurer is the tax collection agent for all taxing entities within Wasco County.

Tax revenue is considered received when in the hands of the County as the intermediary collecting agency. Uncollected taxes receivable at June 30, 2022, amounted to \$60,589.

#### Notes Receivable, Contract Liability and Deferred Inflows of Resources

In the government-wide financial statements, a note receivable is reported as an asset in the statement of net position and a contract liability and deferred inflow of resources are reported as liabilities in the statement of net position. The balances in these accounts on June 30, 2022, are related to land that was sold during the year on contract. Each year as payments are made, the note receivable and the contract liability will decrease and the deferred inflow of resources will increase until until the contract is fulfilled. Upon completion of the contract in June 2027, the District will recognize \$88,000 of deferred inflows and in exchange, will deed the land over to the purchaser, Shangrilla, LLC. On June 30, 2022, the note receivable had a balance of \$79,267, the contract liability had a balance of \$79,267 and the deferred inflow balance was \$8,733.

#### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED

#### **Credit Card Liabilities**

In the government-wide financial statements, credit card liabilities are reported as liabilities in the statement of net position. The District uses a series of credit cards to finance public programs and general operations. The District's general fund pays these debts.

#### Financial Reporting Entity

The District's financial statements include the accounts of all District operations. The criteria for including organizations as component units within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of the Government Accounting Standards Board's (GASB's) *Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards*, include whether:

- The organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in its own name).
- The District holds the corporate powers of the organization.
- The District appoints a voting majority of the organization's board.
- The District is able to impose its will on the organization.
- The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District.
- There is fiscal dependency by the organization on the District.

Both the Jefferson County Library Association and Friends of Jefferson Public Library were examined as potential component units. The District does not hold powers to impose its will or affect board decision. Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units and is not a component unit of any other entity.

#### Appropriations and Budgetary Controls

The District is subject to provisions of the Oregon Revised Statutes which set forth local budget law procedures. A budget is prepared for each fund on the modified cash basis of accounting. Expenditure budgets are appropriated by major program in the fund. Budgeted expenditures at the appropriation level may not be legally overspent.

In accordance with state law, appropriations terminate June 30, and goods and services delivered during the ensuing year must be charged against the ensuing year's appropriations. Encumbrances are not reported in the financial statements.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – CONTINUED

#### **Net Position**

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on the use either through enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.

#### **Comparative Information**

The basic financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not at the level of detail required for a presentation in conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the government's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021, from which the summarized information was derived.

#### **Use of Estimates**

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

#### **New Accounting Pronouncements and Accounting Standards**

On July 1, 2021, the District adopted GASB statement No. 87, *Leases*. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognizes inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. GASB Statement No. 87 establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundation principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use asset, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments' lease activities.

Management determined that the reclassifications did not have a material effect on the Statement of Net Position or the Statement of Activities for the periods ending June 30, 2022, or June 30, 2021.

#### Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 2 - ORGANIZATION AND FUND STRUCTURE

The District was formed for the purpose of providing library services for Jefferson County and surrounding areas. It is organized with an elected board consisting of five members.

#### General Fund

The General Fund is utilized to account for the operation of the District. Property taxes and grants are its principal sources of revenue. Personnel costs and materials and supplies are the major expenditures of the fund.

#### **Building and Improvement Fund**

The Building and Improvement Fund is utilized to save funds for future expansion. Interest income and transfers from the General Fund are its principal sources of revenue and capital outlay will be its principal type of expenditure.

#### **NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS**

The District's investment of cash funds is regulated by the Oregon Revised Statutes. Under these guidelines, cash funds may be invested in bank accounts, general obligation issues of the United States and certain states and certain guaranteed investments issued by banks. During the year, the District purchased allowable investment instruments but did not participate in any repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to it. State statutes require that all bank deposits in excess of the FDIC or FSLIC insurance amounts be collateralized through the Oregon State Treasurer's Public Funds Collateralization Program. This program provides a structure for specified depositories to participate in a shared liability collateral pool. Securities pledged by individual institutions may range from 10% to 110% of public fund deposits depending on the financial institution's level of capitalization as determined by its federal regulatory authority. The aggregate Oregon public fund collateral pledged at June 30, 2022, was \$2,280,145,984 for reported public funds of \$3,459,521,324. The custodian, Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle, is the agent for the depository bank. The securities pledged are designated as subject to the Pledge Agreement between the depository bank, custodian bank and Office of the State Treasurer (OST) and are held for the benefit of OST on behalf of the public depositors. The District's funds were held by financial institutions that participated in the State Treasurer's program and were in compliance with statutory requirements.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

Cash and investments at June 30, 2022, consisted of the following:

Demand deposits	\$ 50,883
Petty cash	150
Jefferson County Treasurer Investment Pool	 1,742,347
	\$ 1,793,380

The District participates in the Jefferson County Treasurer's external investment pool, a non-SEC regulated, open-ended, no-load diversified portfolio created under Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 294.

The Treasurer has calculated the fair value of the underlying investments of the pool, which approximates the carrying value. The portfolio's maturities are regulated by state statute and the County's investment policy.

#### Investments

The Cash with the County Treasurer is carried at cost, which approximates fair market value. Such government pool investments are not required to be categorized in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.

#### Interest Rate Risk

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates beyond the limits provided in state statutes.

#### Credit Risk

State law limits investments to obligations of the United States Treasury and United States Government agencies and instrumentalities, certain bankers' acceptances, repurchase agreements, certain high-grade commercial paper and corporate bonds and obligations of states and municipalities. The District has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices.

#### **Custodial Credit Risk**

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in the possession of an outside party.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS - CONTINUED

#### Custodial Credit Risk - Continued

The funds held with the County Treasurer are not deemed to be a security, which is a transferable financial instrument that evidences ownership and is, therefore, not subject to custodial credit risk.

#### **NOTE 4 – CAPITAL ASSETS**

The District uses estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 30-40 years Improvements 7-15 years Equipment 5-7 years

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2022, amounted to \$57,080. The District has elected not to capitalize and depreciate its reading and audio visual collection.

Changes in the District's capital assets were as follows:

	Balance ıly 1, 2021	A	dditions	г	Disposals	Jui	Balance ne 30, 2022
	 ,						
Capital assets not being depreciated							
Land	\$ 311,387	\$		\$		\$	311,387
Assets not yet placed in service	 120,265		134,450				254,715
	 431,652		134,450				566,102
Capital assets being depreciated							
Buildings	673,802				(187,303)		486,499
Improvements	172,580		65,751		(27,790)		210,541
Furniture and equipment	175,871	<del></del>	132,622		(53,954)		254,539
	1,022,253		198,373		(269,047)		951,579
Less accumulated depreciation	 (511,826)		(57,080)	<del></del>	157,248		(411,658)
Governmental activities capital							
assets, net	\$ 942,079	\$	275,743	\$	(111,799)	\$	1,106,023

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2022

#### **NOTE 5 – RISK MANAGEMENT**

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. To reduce the risk of incurring material losses related to the above, the District pays annual insurance premiums to a special districts supplier.

Limitations on claims are as follows: general liability up to \$500,000 and excess liability up to \$5,000,000. The District also carries insurance for property coverage, crime, workers' compensation and employee health insurance. In the public entity risk pool through Special Districts Insurance Services (SDIS), the District does retain some risk of loss. Since the SDIS trust is a nonassessable trust, the District cannot be required to contribute funds beyond its annual contributions to cover the claims of any other member. In the event of the insolvency of the trust, each member or former member of the trust will continue to be liable for the payment of its own claims and liabilities arising during the period of membership.

The trust's reserves have been sufficient to pay the claims of all members to date and the District believes that the likelihood of insolvency of the trust to be remote. Therefore, no liability for claims has been accrued as of June 30, 2022. No losses were incurred during the year ended June 30, 2022, or the three years prior, which were greater than the District's coverage.

#### **NOTE 6 - PROPERTY TAX LIMITATIONS**

The District is currently subject to constitutional property tax limitation provisions that specify a maximum allowable tax of \$5 for public schools and \$10 for other local government entities for each \$1,000 assessed value of property. The limitation does not include taxes to repay bonded debt or certain special assessments.

Under an additional constitutional limitation, the maximum assessed value of property for 1997-98 was reduced to 90% of each property's assessed value for the 1995-96 tax year. Increases to the assessed value are limited to 3% per year, with exceptions for new property and certain improvements. For the 1997-98 tax year, the totals of most taxing district operating levies in the state were reduced by approximately 17%. For subsequent years, the tax rates for each taxing district are permanently fixed based on the 1997-98 levy. Voters of a local taxing district may approve a tax that exceeds this limitation. Elections related to tax levies or bond measures require 50% of the registered voters to cast ballots to be valid except for general elections in even-numbered years.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 7 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

#### Plan Description

#### General Information about the Pension Plan

The Oregon Public Employees Retirement Systems (PERS or the System) provides statewide defined benefit and defined contribution plans for eligible employers such as units of state government, political subdivisions, community colleges and school districts. For the District and other eligible employers that have joined the State and Local Government Rate Pool, PERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer system. PERS is administered under Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 238, 238A and Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) by the Public Employees Retirement Board. The Board has the authority under state statutes to amend the Plan's benefits and contribution rates. PERS issues publicly available financial reports that, include financial statements and required supplementary information. The reports can be obtained from the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System, PO Box 23700, Tigard, Oregon 97281-3700 or by calling 1-503-598-7377 or at <a href="www.oregon.gov/pers">www.oregon.gov/pers</a>. The Plan currently covers 156,500 retired plan members (or their beneficiaries) receiving benefits, 30,091 inactive plan members not receiving benefits, 30,121 inactive plan members not eligible for refund or retirement, and 180,098 active plan members.

The Plan offers retirement and disability benefits, post-employment healthcare benefits, annual cost of living increases and death benefits to Plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits differ depending upon employee entry date. PERS Tier1/Tier2 plans and the Oregon Public Service Employee's Retirement Plan (OPSRP) established for employees hired after August 29, 2003, are established by state statutes to provide benefits for state and local governments and their employees. The authority to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the Plan rests with the Oregon Legislature.

#### **Benefits Provided**

#### Tier1/Tier2 Retirement Benefit ORS Chapter 238

<u>Pension Benefits</u>. The PERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be selected from 13 retirement benefit options. These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds. The basic benefit is based on years of service and final average salary. A percentage (2% for police and fire employees, 1.67% for general service employees) is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final average salary. Benefits may also be calculated under a formula plus annuity (for members who were contributing before August 21, 1981), or a money match computation if a greater benefit results.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 7 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

Benefits Provided - Continued

#### Tier1/Tier2 Retirement Benefit ORS Chapter 238 - Continued

A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service retirement allowance if he or she has had a contribution in each of five-calendar years or has reached at least 50 years of age before ceasing employment with a participating employer (age 45 for police and fire members). Police and fire members are eligible for retirement after reaching age 50. Also, Tier1 police and fire member benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 55 with fewer than twenty-five years of service. Tier2 members are eligible for full benefits at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.

<u>Death Benefits.</u> Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum refund of the member's account balance (accumulated contributions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the account balance, provided one or more of the following conditions are met:

- the member was employed by a PERS employer at the time of death,
- the member died within 120 days after termination of PERS-covered employment,
- the member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in a PERS covered job or
- the member was on an official leave of absence from a PERS-covered job at the time of death.

<u>Disability Benefits</u>. A member with ten or more years of creditable service who becomes disabled from other than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member (including PERS judge members) for disability benefits regardless of the length of PERS-covered service. Upon qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 (55 for police and fire members) when determining the monthly benefit.

<u>Benefit Changes.</u> After Retirement Members may choose to continue participation in a variable equities investment account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations due to changes in the market value of equity investments. Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes.

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 7 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

Benefits Provided - Continued

#### **OPSRP Individual Account Program (OPSRP IAP)**

<u>Pension Benefits</u>. An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is established or on the date the rollover account was established. If the employer makes optional employer contributions for a member, the member becomes vested on the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five-calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date the IAP is terminated, the date the active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member dies. Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP Individual Account Program (IAP) may receive the amounts in his or her employee account, rollover account and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal installments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution option has a \$200 minimum distribution limit.

<u>Death Benefits</u>. Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member's account balance, rollover account balance and vested employer optional contribution account balance. If a retired member dies before the installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining installment payments or choose a lump-sum payment.

<u>Recordkeeping.</u> OPERS contracts with VOYA Financial to maintain IAP participant records.

#### **Contributions**

PERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially determined rates. These contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. This funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment Benefit Plans. The employer contribution rates during the period were based on the December 31, 2019, actuarial valuation which became effective July 1, 2021. Employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2022, were \$65,867. The rates in effect for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, were 24.38% for Tier 1/Tier 2 employees and 21.15% and 25.51% for general service employees and police and fire OPSRP employees, respectively, in addition to the required 6% IAP contribution.

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 7 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

### Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

The District reports on the modified cash basis of accounting; therefore, the District does not report pension liabilities, deferred outflows of resources nor deferred inflows of resources related to pensions on its Statement of Position. PERS reported that the District's proportionate share of the Plan's net pension liability was \$140,029 at the Plan measurement date. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2019. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating governments, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the District's proportion was .0012%. At the Plan measurement date, PERS reported that the District's proportionate share of pension expense was \$2,075.

#### **Actuarial Assumptions**

The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022, were set using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. For the Tier1/Tier2 component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by the employees during the current service year), (2) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over twenty years. For the OPSRP Pension Program component of the PERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer contribution rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance benefits earned by the employees during the current service year), (b) an amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over sixteen years. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2018, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

- valuation date of December 31, 2019, rolled forward to June 30, 2021,
- experience study report in 2018, published July 24, 2019,
- actuarial cost method using normal entry age
- amortization method amortized as a level percentage of payroll as layered amortization bases over a closed period: Tier 1/Tier 2 UAL is amortized over 20 years and OPSRP pension UAL is amortized over sixteen years
- asset valuation using market value of assets method

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 7 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

#### Actuarial Assumptions - Continued

- inflation rate of 2.40%
- investment rate of return of 6.90%
- projected salary increases of 3.40% in overall payroll growth
- cost of living adjustment (COLA) blend of 2.0% COLA and graded COLA (1.25%/0.15%) in accordance with Moro decision; blend based on service
- mortality rates: Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation. Active members: Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation. Disabled retirees: Pub-2010 Disable Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. The methods and assumptions shown above are based on the 2018 Experience Study which reviewed experience for the four-year period ending on December 31, 2018.

#### Long-term Expected Rate of Return

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in July 2021 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman's capital market assumptions team and the Oregon Investment Council's (OIC) investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman's assumptions for each of the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC long-term target asset allocation. The OIC's description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic model.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 7 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN – CONTINUED

#### Long-term Expected Rate of Return – Continued

Asset Class	Target Allocation	Compounded Annual Return (Geometric)
7.0501 0.000		(000)
Global Equity	30.62%	5.85%
Private Equity	25.50%	7.71%
Core Fixed Income	23.75%	2.73%
Real Estate	12.25%	5.66%
Master Limited Partnerships	75.00%	5.71%
Infrastructure	1.50%	6.26%
Commodities	63.00%	3.10%
Hedge Fund of Funds - Multistrategy	1.25%	5.11%
Hedge Fund Equity - Hedge	63.00%	5.31%
Hedge Fund - Macro	5.62%	5.06%
US Cash	-2.50%	1.76%
Total	100.00%	
Assumed Inflation - Mean		2.40%

#### **Discount Rate**

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90% for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and those of the contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 7 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - CONTINUED

#### Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 6.90%, as well as what the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.90%) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.90%) than the current rate:

				Current			
	1 % Decrease 5.90%		Dis	count Rate 6.90%	1 % Increase 7.90%		
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)	\$	274,984	\$	140,029	\$	27,121	

The District does not report this liability under modified cash basis accounting.

#### **Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position**

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued PERS financial report.

#### Changes in Plan Provisions Subsequent to Measurement Date

We are not aware of any changes subsequent to the June 30, 2021, Measurement Date and the net pension liability (asset) proportionate shares provided by OPERS have not been included in the modified cash basis financial statements.

#### **NOTE 8 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS**

#### General Information about the OPEB Plan

Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS or the System) administers the Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA) cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) plan (the Plan) for units of state government, political subdivisions, community colleges and school districts, containing multiple actuarial pools. Plan assets may be used to pay the benefits of the employees of any employer that provides OPEB through the Plan. Contributions are mandatory for each employer that is a member of PERS. As of June 30, 2020, there were 811 participating employers.

### NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 8 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – CONTINUED

#### General Information about the OPEB Plan - Continued

PERS is administered in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 238, Chapter 238A, and Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). The Oregon Legislature has delegated authority to the Public Employees Retirement Board (Board) to administer and manage the System. All members of the Board are appointed by the governor and confirmed by the State Senate. The governor designates the chairperson. One member must be a public employer manager or a local elected official, one member must be a union-represented public employee or retiree and three members must have experience in business management, pension management or investing.

#### **Contributions**

Contributions for employers are recognized on the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions to PERS are calculated based on creditable compensation for active members reported by employers. Employer contributions are accrued when due pursuant to legal requirements. These are amounts normally included in the employer statements cut off as of the fifth of the following month.

#### Plan Membership

RHIA was established by ORS 238.420. The plan was closed to new entrants hired on or after August 29, 2003. To be eligible to receive this monthly payment toward the premium cost the member must: (1) have eight years or more of qualifying service in PERS at the time of retirement or receive a disability allowance as if the member had eight years or more of creditable service in PERS, (2) receive both Medicare Parts A and B coverage and (3) enroll in a PERS-sponsored health plan.

As of June 30, 2021, the inactive RHIA plan participants currently receiving benefits totaled 42,857 and 12,734 inactive members who meet the requirements to receive RHIA benefits when they retire. There were 43,108 active members currently receiving RHIA benefits.

### OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

The District reports on the modified cash basis of accounting; therefore, the District does not report OPEB liabilities/(assets), deferred outflows of resources nor deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB on its Statement of Net Position. PERS reported that the District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/(asset) was (\$2,541) at the Plan measurement date. The net OPEB liability/(asset was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB liability/(asset) used to calculate the net OPEB liability/(asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of the net pension liability/(asset) was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating governments, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the District's proportion was .0007%. At the Plan measurement date, PERS reported that the District's proportionate share of OPEB expense was \$110.

# JEFFERSON COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT MADRAS, OREGON

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 8 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – CONTINUED

#### **Actuarial Assumptions**

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of even numbered years. The methods and assumptions shown below are based on the 2018 Experience Study, which reviewed experience for the four-year period ended on December 31, 2018.

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2021, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

- actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
- inflation 2.40%
- long-term expected rate of return 6.90%
- discount rate 6.90%
- salary increases 3.40%
- retiree healthcare participation Healthy retirees: 35%; Disabled retirees: 20%
- mortality rates: Healthy retirees and beneficiaries: Pub-2010 Healthy Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation. Active members: Pub-2010 Employee, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation. Disabled retirees: Pub-2010 Disable Retiree, sex distinct, generational with Unisex, Social Security Data Scale, with job category adjustments and set-backs as described in the valuation.

#### Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability at June 30, 2022, and June 30, 2021, was 6.90% and 7.20%, respectively. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from contributing employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the RHIA plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments for the RHIA plan was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

## JEFFERSON COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT MADRAS, OREGON

#### **NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 8 – OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – CONTINUED

#### Long-term Expected Rate of Return

To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the long-term expected rate of return assumption, in June 2021 the PERS Board reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman's capital market assumptions team and the Oregon Investment Council's (OIC) investment advisors. Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions and includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. More information on the Plan's portfolio, assumed asset allocation, and the long-term expected rate of return for each major asset class, calculated using both arithmetic and geometric means are included in the PERS' audited financial statements.

### Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability/(asset) of the Plans as of June 30, 2021, calculated using the discount rate of 7.20%, as well as what the RHIC net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.20%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20%) than the current rate:

	Current						
		Decrease 5.90%	Discount Rate 6.90%		1 % Increase 7.90%		
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)	\$	(2,247)	\$	(2,541)	\$	(2,792)	

### **NOTE 9 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN**

The District offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all District employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, death, disability, resignation or retirement.

Monies accumulated by the District under the Plan have been deposited with AIG and have been invested in mutual funds. These deposits are not subject to the collateral requirements by Oregon law.

# JEFFERSON COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT MADRAS, OREGON

# NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2022

#### NOTE 9 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN - CONTINUED

Plan assets are held in trust with AIG serving as trustee for the exclusive benefit of the plan participants and their beneficiaries. The assets will not be diverted for any other purpose. The District's beneficial ownership of plan assets will be for the exclusive benefits of participants and beneficiaries. The District has little administrative involvement and does not perform the investing functions for the Plan, nor does it contribute.

#### **NOTE 10 – INTERFUND TRANSFERS**

The District made the following transfers associated with future capital outlay by the building and improvement fund:

	Tra	nsfer Out	Tr	ansfer In
General fund Building and improvement fund	\$	210,762	\$	210,762
	\$	210,762	\$	210,762



## MADRAS, OREGON

# GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE MODIFIED CASH BASIS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

	Buc	dget		Over (Under) Final Budget	
	Original	Final	Actual		
Revenues received					
Property taxes	\$ 701,681	\$ 701,681	\$ 728,867	\$ 27,186	
Program service revenue	\$ 701,081	J 701,081	2,307	2,307	
Grants	210,646	346,441	119,839	(226,602)	
Interest	17,500	17,500	8,703	(8,797)	
Film center revenue	1,000	1,000	0,703	(1,000)	
Rental income	200	200	100	(100)	
Contributions - public support	4,000	4,000	602	(3,398)	
Fees and miscellaneous	4,500	4,500	7,382	2,882	
Gain on sale of asset	4,500	4,500	9,768	9,768	
Gain on saic or asset				3,700	
Total revenues received	939,527	1,075,322	877,568	(197,754)	
Expenditures paid					
Personnel services					
Payroll	339,938	364,813	327,766	(37,047)	
Payroll taxes	30,000	30,000	28,060	(1,940)	
Pension plan contribution	64,725	64,725	73,272	8,547	
Employee benefits	66,000	66,000	56,011	(9,989)	
	500,663	525,538	485,109	(40,429)	
Materials and services					
Advertisements	7,000	7,000	5,640	(1,360)	
Bank and Collection charges	1,100	1,100	880	(220)	
Board expenses	1,000	1,000	501	(499)	
Patron materials	83,800	83,800	68,851	(14,949)	
Computer and software expense	1,000	1,000	1,377	377	
Consultant fees	6,000	6,000	5,102	(898)	
Copier expense	5,000	5,000	3,620	(1,380)	
Fees and dues	5,000	5,000	4,937	(63)	
Grants expense	203,000	293,434	148,092	(145,342)	
Insurance	7,950	7,950	7,523	(427)	
DPLS	14,250	14,250	14,103	(147)	
Data line	3,800	3,800	2,194	(1,606)	
Janitorial	6,500	6,500	6,780	280	
Legal, accounting and audit	35,984	35,984	43,966	7,982	
Maintenance and repairs	16,000	16,000	36,015	20,015	
Miscellaneous	400	400		(400)	
Office supplies	10,250	10,250	9,443	(807)	
Occupancy blue office duplex	3,440	3,440	2,449	(991)	
Occupancy Genealogy Center	8,964	8,964	3,694	(5,270)	
Program expenses	20,800	20,800	17,651	(3,149)	

MADRAS, OREGON

### **GENERAL FUND**

# SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE MODIFIED CASH BASIS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED

<b>.</b>	Buc Original	lget Final	Actual	Over (Under) Final Budget	
	Original	Filldi	Actual	rillai Buuget	
Expenditures paid - Continued					
Materials and services - Continued					
Staff database	4,500	4,500	10,571	6,071	
Training	4,000	4,000	1,670	(2,330)	
Travel, lodging and meals	6,500	8,700	7,050	(1,650)	
Utilities - annex	375	550	837	287	
Utilities and telephone	13,750	13,750	13,124	(626)	
Film center expense	1,000	1,000	1,878	878	
Website hosting	1,300	1,300	1,800	500	
	472,663	565,472	419,748	(145,724)	
Capital outlay	5.000	5.000		(5.000)	
Building and improvement	5,000	5,000	E4 E26	(5,000)	
Office equipment and furniture	57,000	166,040	51,536	(114,504)	
	62,000	171,040	51,536	(119,504)	
Contingency	50,000	50,000		(50,000)	
	50,000	50,000		(50,000)	
Total expenditures paid	1,085,326	1,312,050	956,393	(355,657)	
				(000),10.7	
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures	(145,799)	(236,728)	(78,825)	157,903	
Other financing sources (uses)					
Transfer from Building and Improvement Fund	283,000	283,000		(283,000)	
Transfer to the Building and Improvement Fund	(1,000,000)	(1,000,000)	(210,762)	789,238	
Transfer to the ballang and improvement and	(1,000,000)	(1,000,000)	(210,702)	703,230	
Net change in fund balance	(862,799)	(953,728)	(289,587)	664,141	
Fund balance - Beginning of year	1,381,101	1,381,101	\$ 1,192,093	(189,008)	
Fund balance - End of year	\$ 518,302	\$ 427,373	\$ 902,506	\$ 475,133	

MADRAS, OREGON

# BUILDING AND IMPROVEMENT FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE MODIFIED CASH BASIS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

	E	udget		Over (Under)
	Original	Final	Actual	Final Budget
Revenues received				
Interest	\$ 1,917	\$ 1,917	\$ 4,037	\$ 2,120
Rental income	15,600	15,600	14,922	(678)
Total Revenues	17,517	17,517	18,959	1,442
Expenditures paid				
Materials and services	21,175	21,175	25,314	4,139
Capital outlay	1,316,342	1,316,342	175,469	(1,140,873)
Contingency	15,000	15,000		(15,000)
	1,352,517	1,352,517	200,783	(1,151,734)
Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures	(1,335,000	(1,335,000)	(181,824)	1,153,176
Other financing sources				
Transfer from General Fund	1,000,000	1,000,000	210,762	(789,238)
Transfer to General Fund	(283,000	(283,000)	***************************************	283,000
	717,000	717,000	210,762	(506,238)
Net change in fund balance	(618,000	(618,000)	28,938	646,938
Fund balance - Beginning of year	618,000	618,000	849,620	231,620
Fund balance - End of year	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 878,558	\$ 878,558

# JEFFERSON COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT MADRAS, OREGON

# SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND APPROPRIATIONS

General Fund	 Actual	_Ap	propriation	Amount nder (Over) opropriation
Personnel services Materials and services Capital outlay Transfers General operating contingency	\$ 485,109 419,748 51,536 210,762 1,167,155	\$	525,538 565,472 171,040 1,000,000 50,000 2,312,050	\$ 40,429 145,724 119,504 789,238 50,000 1,144,895
Building and Improvement Fund				
Materials and services Capital outlay Transfers Contingency	\$ 25,314 175,469	\$	21,175 1,316,342 283,000 15,000	\$ (4,139) 1,140,873 283,000 15,000
	\$ 200,783	\$	1,635,517	\$ 1,434,734

### MADRAS, OREGON

## SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS

Tax Year  Jefferson County	Bal	eginning lance and 0-21 Levy	Adjı	Net ustments	nterest viscount)	Co	llections	collected 30, 2021
2021-22 2020-21 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14 Prior	\$	736,381 16,348 8,441 4,570 1,466 122 65 106 288	\$	(4,062) 488 554 705 334 37 9 5	\$ (19,471)	\$	696,871 9,094 4,601 3,970 1,616 122 30 16 43	\$ 15,977 7,742 4,394 1,305 184 37 44 95 265
	\$	767,787	\$	(1,910)	\$ (19,471)	\$	716,363	\$ 30,043
Wasco County								
2021-22 2020-21 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 Prior	\$	12,865 269 134 81 25 10 4 6	\$	(34) (11) (7) (8) (1)	\$ (340) 4 4 4 (328)	\$	12,220 148 65 50 14 4 1 3	\$ 271 114 66 27 10 6 3 5
Total Tax Revenue	\$	781,181	\$	(1,969)	\$ (19,799)	\$	728,867	\$ 30,545



MADRAS, OREGON

### **SCHEDULE OF TOP PROPERTY TAXPAYERS**

***************************************	Organization Name	Tax Amount
1	Portland General Electric Company	\$ 3,758,080.71
2	Pacific Corp	912,583.12
3	Bright Wood Corporation	830,813.86
4	Gas Transmission Northwest, LLC	655,926.82
5	Keith Investments, LLC/Keith Manufacturing Co.	422,556.91
6	Warm Springs Power Enterprises	254,165.11
7	Love's Travel Stops & Country Stores, Inc.	199,548.14
8	BNSF Railway Company	181,288.85
9	Union Pacific Railroad Company	161,512.54
10	Pratum Co-op	140,390.21
11	Apple	140,134.58
12	ACI Real Estate Spe 130, LLC dba Albertsons Co.	138,070.58
13	Lumen Technologies, Inc.	132,565.14
14	Cascade Natural Gas Corporation	127,136.55
15	Verizon Communications Inc.	115,395.19
16	East Cascade Retirement Community, LLC	102,689.19
17	Daimler Trucks North America, LLC	101,442.51
18	Knight, Philip H. & Penelope P.	93,617.58
19	Ponderosa Land & Cattle Co., LLC	91,103.44
20	Aero Air, LLC, dba Erickson Aero Tanker	79,747.21

# AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY STATE REGULATIONS



Kara L. Pardue, Partner
Adam M. Barnett, Partner
Heather A. McMeekin, Partner
Wesley B. Price, III, Partner Emeritus

# INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS

Board of Directors Jefferson County Library District Madras, OR

We have audited the basic financial statements of Jefferson County Library District (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and have issued our report thereon dated December 12, 2022. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

### **Compliance**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:

- Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).
- Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).
- Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.
- Programs funded by outside sources
- Highway revenues used for public highways, roads, and streets
- Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).
- Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).

Board of Directors Jefferson County Library District Page 2

We reviewed the District's procedures for preparation, adoption and execution of its budget for the year ended June 30, 2022, and found them to be in compliance with statutory requirements with the following exceptions:

Expenditures for Materials and Services in the Building and Improvement fund exceed the appropriation by \$4,139.

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention other than the above budget exception, that caused us to believe the District was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.

#### OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and management of Jefferson County Library District and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties.

PRICE FRONK & CO.

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Heather A. McMeekin – a partner

December 12, 2022